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ASDA Group Limnted
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Directors’ report
The directors present their directors” report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
Principal activities

The principal activities of ASDA Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “ASDA” or “‘the
Group™) are the retailing of food, clothing, home and leisure products and services throughout the United Kingdom
and online

Group profit and dividends

Group revenues for the year icreased by 4 6% to £22 8bn (2011 £21 8bn), while operating profit decreased by
06% to £8409m (2011 £8459m) Underlymng operating profit grew by 7 6% after adjusting for non-recurring
benefits mn 2011 and an exceptional increase in inter-company charges for share options Non-recurring benefits in
2011 were noted i the 2011 directors’ report and included a one-off benefit following closure of the defined benefit
pension scheme and a reduction tn royalties pawd to Wal-Mart Stores Inc partially offset by integration costs
following the acquisition of Netto Foodstores Limited

Profit after tax for the year was £609 9m (2011 £573 4m) an increase of 6 4%
No dividends were paid 1n the year (2011 £mil)
Amounts recharged by Ultimate Parent Company

The group accounts mcur recharges from the ultimate parent company, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc These recharges relate
to the cost of share options, the cost of services provided (mainly relating to IT), and royalnes The share options
granted to colleagues by ASDA are 1n the ultimate parent company, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc and are treated as 1f they
are cash settled

Sigmificant events in the year

On 26 Apnil 2012, the Group acquired Turkmen Tedank Hizmetleri, a company based in Turkey, which manages
the sourcing of clothing for George in countnes including Turkey and Egypt The transaction will help the Group
extend 1ts sourcing capabilities and become even more responsive in delivering style, quahty and value as the
business expands m the UK and worldwide

Business review, KPIs and future developments

The external environment continued to be challenging, with low wage growth and persistent price inflation exerting
downward pressure on disposable incomes The ASDA income tracker for 2012 showed that customers had £144 of
weekly discretionary income 1n December, unchanged from December 2011 but £10 below the figure for December
2010 In this context, ASDA had a successful year, contimung to build trust with customers who are increasingty
selective about what they buy and where they shop We delivered against our core purpose of “SAVING YOU
[customers] MONEY EVERY DAY” by strengthening our position as price leader We also mmproved product
quality and customer service, supported by innovations such as the further development of our *Chosen By You’
food range with the addition of 1,500 new lines in the year

Financral lughlights

. Like-for-Like sales growth of 1 0% (excluding petrol and VAT)

. Total sales growth of 4 6% (excluding VAT)

. Operating profit decreased by 0 6%, with underlying operating profit increasing by 7 6%
. Market share up 0 2%, to 17 5% (source Kantar 52 weeks to 6 January 2013)
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Directors’ report (continued)

Operational highlights

We have continued to strengthen our price leadership throughout 2012 and mnto 2013, investing to reduce the
prices of products across the store In the summer we deepened our price leadership through a major
mvestment in the prices of everyday essentials such as bread, milk and eggs, and we have held those prices
down for over 300 days We rewnforced these prices through the ASDA Price Guarantee which continued to
run throughout 2012, assurning customers that ASDA will be 10% cheaper than its competitors In addition, in
June 2012, ASDA won The Grocer Magazme’s lowest priced supermarket award for a fifteenth successive
year

Quality remained a key area of focus We nvested 1n our fresh food ranges and were successful in winmng
three major awards (In-store Bakery, Meat and Fresh Produce Retailer of the Year) We strengthened our
own brand credentials, adding 1,500 lines to our ‘Chosen By You’ range and strengthened ‘Extra Special’
through our partnership with Leith’s School of Food and Wine Finally, our George clothing busimess
captured the Which? Number | for Overall Value on Schoolwear award

The ASDA on-line business delivered strong growth and gammed market share i grocery, general
merchandise and clothing This was achieved mainly through expansion of our service As at 31 December
2012, 196 stores have home shopping facilities and we have two standalong home shopping centres During
the autumn we also launched our grocery “Click & Collect” service, which by the end of the year was
available 1n 74 stores Finally we saw our fasiest growth in mobile services, with our mobile apps rated
highest 1n the market and wath the roll out of free Wi-F1 across our stores

We continue to develop talent and diversity across the whole orgamsation and in 2012 over 80% of our retail
colleagues were promoted from within ASDA We also believe we have the friendliest and most helpful
colleagues 1n the industry and 1t 1s thanks to thetr continued commitment, that in June, ASDA was voted by
customers as ‘Britain’s Favourite Supermarket’, as awarded by The Grocer Magazine for the second year mna
oW

In March 2012 we launched our Commumity Life programme which 1s focused on making the commumtics
around our stores and depots better places to live, work and grow up for our colleagues and customers The
Community Life programme 15 underpinned by 4 key pillars (Working Life, Local Life, Healthier Life and
Greener Life} Our ambition 15 to become the ‘Number 1° retailer for community perception to support
ASDA becoming Bntain's most trusted retailer

Finally despite significant cost pressures, the ASDA “We Operate for Less” programme continued to deliver
substantial, incremental productivity savings across stores, home shopping, distribution centres and home
offices, helping to oifset inflationary pressures in utihities and commodities This programme 15 a
fundamental part of our drive to reduce costs 1n our business so that we can reduce pnices for our customers

Delivering foundations for future growth

Twenty three new stores were opened during the year, 13 supermarkets 5 superstores and 5 ASDA lLvings
This added 640,000 sq ft of new space

ASDA’s multichannel and supermarkets continue to be the two fastest growing areas of the business with
multichannel seemng double digit growth in 2012 Within our supermarkets we have improved and adapted
our ranges to tailor towards smaller baskets and top up shoppers 2012 has also seen the growth of Grocery
“Chick & Collect” into 86 stores across the business

In 2012, our first George franchise stores were opened taking our George clothing business to the Middle
East and the Channel Islands

In the context of the uncertain economic outlook, the ASDA purpose to save customers money every day remams
highly relevant to customers Qur strong performance in 2012 refiects our commutment to dehiver agamst this core
purpose, at the same time as strengthening the trust customers place in us for the quahty of our products and the
warm and friendly service dehivered by our colleagues
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Directors’ report (continued)
Risks and uncertainties

Risk 1s an mevitable part of business One of the ongoing acuvities undertaken by ASDA 1s the identification of
principal risks, assessment of their likelthood and consequence, and development and monitoring of appropriate
controls The Board has overall responsibility for nsk management and ensunng that this 1s aligned with business
strategy and objectives The Board 1s supported by a Risk and Audit Commuttee that meets quarterly

Key nsks and mitigating actions are set out below

 Economic risk
The consumer environment continues to be challenging with price inflaton growing significantly faster
than wage nflaton putting downward pressure on customer discretionary imcome While the overall
cconomy 15 showing early signs of recovery, we expect conditions to remain tough for our customers

¢  Competitive nsk
In the highly competitive retail industry, success depends on satisfying changing customer needs better
than the competition  ASDA has a brand reputation for offering a broad range of products at the lowest
prices, and failure to uphold this reputation could lead to a loss of market share

ASDA regularly monitors relevant data on aspects such as price positton in the market, product availability
and other measures of quality and service that are important to our customers We constantly monitor
market information to understand our position relative to competitors and enable appropriate action to be
taken on a timely basis The ASDA Price Guarantee continued to operate during 2012 The guarantee
commits ASDA to delivering prices 10% cheaper than our core competitors or to offering a voucher for the
difference

»  Strategic risk
We continue to invest in new opportumties and areas of growth in order to diversify our offering to
customers The board invests significant time 1n formulating, reviewing and communicating strategy
effectively to those delivenng 1t

¢  Supplier risk
The current economic chimate 1s challenging for our suppliers This puts increased importance on the
strength of our control processes and our ability to recogmse and respond to supplier 1ssues  We have set
up a periodic review process of supplier nsk to 1dentify issues, develop appropriate action plans and
impreve our controls 1n relation to supplier monitoring

e  Resourcing and capability risk
Retention of key individuals and succession planning 1s important for long term stability and success We
have a robust appraisal process and Talent Review System to ensure that the nght individuals are in the
right roles, with a clear career path to long term development The goodwall of colleagues 1s maintained
through open communication, both to allow management to share information about the business and to
give colleagues the opportunity to provide feedback about working at ASDA

* Fmancial risk
ASDA’s principai financial nisk 15 having funds available at the right time to meet business needs This
risk 1s managed by the Treasury function, which forecasts cash flows and ensures that adequate short term
funds and borrowing facilities are 1n place 1o meet habilities to suppliers, colleagues and 1investors

Certain transactions with suppliers and with the Group’s ultimate parent undertaking are denomunated n
foreign currencies  The Treasury function uses information from around the business to forecast the timing
and level of foreign currency requirements and buys forward accordingly It 1s ASDA’s pohicy not to buy
or hold foreign currency speculatively Currency forward contracts are accounted for at fair value
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Directors’ report (continued)
Risks and uncertainties (connnued)

ASDA operates a number of pension arrangements for our employees including a defined benefit pension
scheme This 1s subject to risk m relation to 1ts pension defieit which 1s shown as a hability on the balance
sheet This nsk has been reduced when the defined benefit pension scheme was closed to future accrual in
2011 The nisk has been further mitigated through consultation wath the pension scheme trustees to 1dentify
appropnate long term funding solutions for the scheme To further muminuse this nisk, the trustees
appointed a new fund manager in 2009 with delegated responsibility for managing 30% of the scheme's
assets using a hability driven investment approach ASDA’s ultimate parent has also guaranteed the
scheme habilines

*  Reputational nsk
The key to ASDA’s success 1s the loyalty and goodwill shown by our customers, supplers and colleagues

Failure to protect our reputation could lead to a loss of trust in the ASDA brand and consequent erosion of
customer loyalty ASDA regularly engages with customers, both directly and through the monitoring of
available external data, in order to ensure that our positive customer perception 1s maintained

We maintain strong relationships with our suppliers by operating on terms that are mutually agreed and
updated as appropnate to reflect changes in both parties’ respective needs

s  Regulatory and compliance risk
We recognise that ASDA operates 1n an environment where we can be impacted by changes in Government
policy In response to this, we continue to risk assess all regulatory developments and test compliance with
internal processes designed to rmtigate risks, making improvements where required

* Fraud nsk
We have a control framework 1n place to help prevent and detect potential fraud and dishonest activity
The ASDA-Wal-Mart Statement of Ethics also provides clear guidance to colleagues on appropriate
behaviour, including guidance on how to raise any business conduct concerns they may have through the
Open Door Communication Process or through the local Ethics Committee  In addition, procedures are in
place in respect of comphance with the UK Bnibery Act and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

¢ Systems risk
Detailed disaster recovery plans are n place n the event of an mcident which could severely affect
ASDA’s ability to trade A comprehensive Incident Response Plan exists to ensure business continuity mn
the event of a major incident

¢  Environmental nsk
As a retailer, we recogmse that we have a responsibility to mimmise the adverse impact that our business
activities have on the environment Failure to do this may result not only in adverse environmental
impacts, but also financial penalties and long term damage to our reputation

In recent years, we have implemented a number of imtatives and processes m recogmtion of our
environmental responsibifities We have reduced our absolute carbon footprint by 15 8% since 2007, and
our existing stores emit 30 1% fewer carbon emissions than 1n 2005 The major focus of our strategy 1s now
on our supply chan, including runming a umque collaboration tool to help our supplers become more
efficient
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Directors’ report (continued)
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Until 17 September 2007, an element of the Group's debt securities were lListed on the London Stock Exchange,
which meant that the Group prepared 1ts consohdated financial statements under [FRS as required by EU regulation
After this date these debt secunties were migrated from the Main Market to the Professional Securities Market of the
London Stock Exchange This mugration enables the Group to follow the wholesale regime introduced by the
Prospectus Directive which states that preparing financial statements under IFRS 1s not a requirement and local
accounting standards are acceptable However the Group has elected to maintain [FRS as its applicable GAAP

The Group’s mdividual company financial statements, and those of 1ts subsidianes, continue to be prepared under
UK GAAP This 15 with the exception of the Intemational Procurement and Logistics Linited financial statements
which are prepared under [FRS

Events since the balance sheet date
Change in rate of taxation

The Finance Act 2012 received Royal Assent on 17 July 2012 and enacted a reduction in the main rate of
cotporation tax to 24% with effect from 1 Apnt 2012 and to 23% from | Apnl 2013 Deferred tax has therefore been
provided at 23%

On 20 March 2013, 1t was announced in the 2013 Budget that the main rate of corporation tax effective from 1 Apnl
2014 will be 21% and that a further reduction of 1% will be applied to bring the main rate of corporation tax down
to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015

Financial instruments
ASDA’s financial risk management objectives and policies are further discussed in notes 1 and 18
Capital management

As a wholly owned subsidiary, the capital of the Group 1s monitored n accordance with the overall capital
management policy of the ulimate parent company Wal-Mart Stores, Inc and the pnmary objective of ASDA’s
capital management policy 1s to be consistent with the requirements of the ultimate parent

A key clement of funding 1s through intercompany loans which can change from time to ime The consolidated
financial statements of the ulimate parent company disclose how the Wal-Mart group define and manage capital
and meet the group capital objectives

Innovation

Essential to our success 1s the delivery of innovative, good value products, which are umique to ASDA  Buying
teams, food technologists and marketeers, working closely with supplters, are continuously searching to improve the
quality of our products and to develop new 1deas, many of which are sold under the ASDA brand, Smartprice, Extra
Special and George labels as well as the Chosen By You brand which was launched 1n 2010 We also benefit from
synergies 1n research and development from being part of the Wal-Mart group
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Directors’ report (continued)

Policy and practice on payment of crediters

ASDA deals with over ten thousand separate suppliers, and has established trading terms which are appropnate to
the particular relationship and product supphed Whenever an order 15 placed the parties will be aware of the
payment terms and 1t 1s our policy to abide by these terms when satisfactory invoices have been received

Political and chantable contributions

During the year, cash donations to charitable organisations and other community projects totalled £16 9m (2011
£119m) ASDA's colleagues, customers and suppliers have collectively raised monies through events including
BBC Chiidren In Need, Tickled Pink (supporting Breast Cancer Care & Breast Cancer Campaign), Everyman,
Sporting Chance and Tommy's, the baby charity The ASDA Foundation, ASDA's chantable company, also
supported a range of local charities and sustainable local projects These projects are local cause-related activities,
contnbuting to local charities or causes that our colleagues wish to support Duning the year, we also made
chantable donations of surplus clothing stocks

ASDA did not make any political donations during the year (2011 £ml)
Disabled colleagues

ASDA 1s proud to work 1n partnership with Remploy, one of the UK’s leading providers of specialist employment
services for disabled people and people facing complex barmers to employment Working with Remploy, we
continue to deliver on our commtment to recruit and retamn colleagues who reflect the customers and the
communities that ASDA serves

We are commtted to providing equal employment opportunities for all sections of society and give full and equal
consideration to disabled job applicants who have the suitable skulls, abilities and potential to fulfil a role

If an existing colleague becomes disabled, 1t 1s our policy, wherever possible, to work with the individual to provide
smtable and continuing employment under normal terms and conditions We are comrmtted to providing equal
access to training, career development and promotion to our disabled colleagues

Colleague involvement

Regular meetings are held between local management and colleagues to allow a free flow of information and 1deas
All colleagues are also involved 1n shaping our People strategy through the Your Voice Survey which provides them
with the opportunity to give feedback on all aspects of working at ASDA  Duning the year, the policy of providing
colleagues with information about the business was continued through briefings on the ASDA internal website As
part of our ongong commitment to training and development we have continued to develop the ASDA Academy to
provide all colleagues with a structured traiing programme

Directors’ habilities

ASDA has granted an indemnity to each of its directors against liability n respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the conditions set out 1n the Companies Act 2006 Such quahfying third party indemmty remains
in force as at the date of approving the Directors’ Report

The mmdemmnity 1s controlled and paid centrally by the ultimate parent company

For a list of directors who held office during the year please refer to the beginnung of these financial statements




ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Directors’ report (continued)
Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the audiior in connection with preparing 1ts report, of which the auditor 15
unaware Having made enquiries of fellow directors and the group’s auditor, each director has taken all the steps that
he/she 1s obliged to take as a director 1n order to made himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

Re-appointment of auditors

In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Emst & Young
LLP as auditors of the Group 1s to be proposed at the forthcommng Annual General Meeting

On behalf of the board
R Mayfield ASDA House
Director Southbank
JSJune 2013 Great Wilson Street
Leeds
LS11 5AD
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report and Financial Statements sn accordance with applicable
Umted Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
present farrly the financial pesition, financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that peniod

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to
s  present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group,

»  select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently,

e present information, including accounting pohcies, n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

¢ make judgements that are reasonable,

s  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements 1n IFRSs 1s insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's
financial position and financial performance, and

e state that the Group has complied with IFRSs, subject to any maternal departures disclosed and explained 1n the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any nme the financial position of the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 and article 4 of IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities




Independent auditor’s report to the members of ASDA Group Limited

We have audited the Group financial statements of ASDA Group Limited for the year ended 31 December
2012 which comprise the consohidated income statement, the conschdated statement of comprehensive
income, the consohidated balance sheet, the consolidated staterment of changes m equty, the consohdated
statement of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 27 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied n their preparation 18 apphcable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made sclely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Compamies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of durectors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opmion on the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financtal statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal nusstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements [n addition, we read all the financial and non-financial iformation in the Directors’ report and
financial statements to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

Optnion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements
e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit
for the year then ended,
# have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion the informauon given 1n the directors’ report for the financial year for which the group
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, m cur opinion

¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the informatton and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent cempany financial statements of ASDA Group Limited for the

year ended 31 December 2012
fg (Senior Staturghy Auditor)

Chnistabel Cowl
for and on behalf of Emst & Yo LP, Statutory Auditor

Leeds

15 June 2013




Consolidated income statement
Jor the year ended 31 December 2012

Continuing operations
Revenue
Operating costs

Operating profit
Financial income
Financial costs

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Profit for the year

Cash flow hedges - (losses)/gains ansing n the year
Actuanal (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension scheme
Effect of mimmum funding requirement

Tax on items recognised directly 1n equity

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Ownmers of the parent
Non-controlling 1nterests

Note

w

Co

Note

19
19

ASDA Group Limited

31 December

Drirectors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

31 December

2012 2011
£m £m
22,843 4 21,8477
(22,002 5) (21,001 8)
8409 8459
117 44

(78 3) (825
774 3 767 8
(164 4) (194 4)
609 9 573 4
598 4 568 6
115 48

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
£m fm
609 9 573 4
217 88
(70 1) 44
136 (190 0)
138 419
(64 4) (134 9)
545 5 4385
5340 4337
115 48
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Operating lease prepayments

Current assets
Inventones
Trade and other recervables
Intercompany recervables
Cash and short term deposits
Income tax receivable
Operating lease prepayments

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity attmbutable to the shareholders
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves
Cash flow hedge reserve
Retawned earnings

Total equuty atinbutable to the shareholders
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilittes
Borrowings
Employee benefits
Provisions
Deferred tax habilities

Current habilthes
Trade and other payables
Intercompany payables
Income tax hability
Borrowings
Employee benefits

Total habihihes

Total equaty and hiabihties

Note

1
11
12

14
15
15
16

12

22
22
23
23
23

18
19
20
21

17
i7

i8
19

ASDA Group Limited

Registered No 1396513

Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

2012 2011
im tm
8,504 1 8,2275
5198 504 4
1224 1252
9,146 3 8,857 1
1,1597 1,015 8
3002 2822
1,7970 1,392 0
4185 4341

- 02

19 17
3,6773 3,126 0
12,8236 11,9831
7839 7839
568 4 568 4
4371 4371
(aemn 51
4,3892 3,8392
6,1679 5,6337
274 173
6,1953 56510
184 4 1858
3985 4319
283 223
1022 1289
7134 7689
2,908 4 2,8716
2,8626 2,6510
958 -
14 13
467 393
5,9149 5,563 2
6,628 3 6,332 1
12,8236 11,983 1

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on ZS June 2013 and were signed

on 1ts behalf by

R Mayfield
Director

11



Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Jor the year ended 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2011

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Cash flow hedges - gains ansing 1n the year

Tax on cash flow hedges recognised directly i equaty
Actuanal gains on defined benefit penston scheme
Effect of mimmum funding requirement

Tax on actuanal losses recogrused directly m equity

Total

Total comprehensive income

Net assets recogrised on business combination
Balapce at | Janoary 2012

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Cash flow hedges - losses arising i the year

Tax on cash flow hedges recognised directly m equity
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme
Effect of mimmum funding requirement

Tax on actuanal losses recogmised directly in equity

Total

Total comprehensive income

Tax on tems credited to equity

Transaction with non-controlling interest
Dvidends

Balance at 31 December 2012

ASDA Group Limuted

Registered No 1396513

Drrectors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Cash Now Non-
Share Share Other bedge Retwned  controlling Total
capital premivm reserves reserve  earnings 1aterest equity
£m fm £m £m £m £m £m
7839 568 4 4371 {16) 34122 - 52000
- - - 568 6 48 5734
- - B 38 - - B3
- - . 2n - - @n
- - - - 44 - 44
- - - (190 0) - (190 0)
- - - 440 - 440
- - - 67 (141 6) - (1349)
- - - 67 4270 48 4385
- - - - - 125 125
7839 5684 4371 51 38392 73 56510
- - - - 598 4 1135 609 9
- - - 217 - - 217
- - - 59 - - 59
. . - . (70 1) - o
- - - - 136 - 136
- - - - 79 - 79
- - - (158) (48 6) - (64 4)
- - - (158) 5408 s 545 5
- - - . 02 - 02
- - - - - (14} (14)
7839 568 4 4371 o7 43892 274 61953
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
JSorthe year ended 31 December 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after tax from continuing operations

Adpustments to reconctle prafit after tax to net cash flons
Depreciation

Amortisation of mtangible assets

Amortisation of lease prepayments

Financial income

Financial costs

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment

Tax on continuing operattons

Excess contributions over pension service cost
Curtarlment gain recognised

Changes 1n working capital and provisions
Increase in trade and other receivables
{Increase)/decrease inn inventones
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Increase i share based payment hability
Other non cash charges

Tax pad

Net cash flows from operating sctivities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property plani and equipment
(Increase)/decrease i intercompany receivables
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired
Interest received

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest patd

Increase 1n intercompany payables
(Decrease)/increase in finance lease obligations

Net cash flow from financing acitivities

Net (decrease)increase 1n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

ASDA Group Lunited
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31 December 31 December

Note 2012 2011
fm £m

6099 573 4

10 3971 3797
I 16 32
26 14

7 (aLrn {4 4)
& 783 825
3 213 175
9 164 4 194 4
9 (90 1) G61)
19 - (570)
(13 0) {113)

{143 9) 18 1

202 (62 9}

60 75

19 177 82
101 125

(78 8) (123 9)

086 7 9828

93 -

(405 0) 4028

(717 2) (658 3)

(16 6) (741 6}

7 16 14
(1,127 9) (9951

(847) 028

2116 1092

8 (13) 34
1256 198

(15 6) 69

434 1 42172

16 4185 434 1
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ASDA Group Limited
[Dhrectors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forning part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies

General information

ASDA Group Limuted (the “Company”) 1s a company ncorporated and domiciled wn the UK under the
Companies Act 2006 (registration number 1396513) The address of the registered office 1s ASDA House,
Southbank, Great Wilson Street, Leeds, LS11 5AD, UK

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and nts subsidianies (together referred to as
*“the Group™)

As described 1n the directors’ report, the mam activities of the Group are the retailling of food, clothing, home
and leisure products and services throughout the Umted Kingdom and online

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of comphance with IFRSs

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 were authorised for 1ssue by the
directors on 2.5 June 2013 and the balance sheet was signed on behalf of the directors by R Mayfield

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted 1FRSs”) The Company continues
to prepare 1ts company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 60-67

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the ultimate holding company has
agreed that 1t will continue to provide financial support to the Group to enable it to meet its liabilities as they
fall due

The Group financial statements are presented n Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred
thousand pounds except where otherwise stated

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been apphed consistently to all periods
presented m these Group financial statements

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
following amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2012

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) — Deferred Taxes Recovery of Underlying Assets

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendment) — Severe
Hypermflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures
(Amendments)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures — Enhanced Derecogmtion Disclosure Requirements

The adoption of the standards or interpretations 15 described below
IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) — Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets

This amendment introduces an exception to the existing principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or
habihties ansing on mvestment properties for those held at fair value The amendment 1s effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and there has been no effect on the Group’s financial position,
performance or 1ts disclosures

IFRS 1 Fuirst-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendment) — Severe
Hypernnfiation and Removal of Fixed Dates for Furst-Time Adepters

This amendment provides gwidance on how an entity should resume presenting financial statements in
accordance with IFRS’s after a period when 1t was unable to comply as its functional currency was subject to
hypeninflaion The amendment 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 The
amendment had no impact to the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (confinned)
1 Accounting policies {continued)
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

These amendments are as part of the IASB’s comprehensive review of off balance sheet activities The
amendment requires additional disclosure to enable the user of the Group’s financial statements to understand
the relattonship of those assets that have not been derecogmsed and their associated liabilities The amendment
15 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 The Group does not have any assets with these
characteristics so there has been no effect on the presentation of 1ts financial statements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 1ssuance of the Group’s
financial statements are disclosed below The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they
become effective

IAS I Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to TAS 1 change the grouping of 1items presented in other comprehensive mcome (OCI) on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently ITtems that could be reclassified
to profit or loss subsequently would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified The
amendment affects presentation only and has no wmpact on the Group’s financial position or performance The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 July 2012, and will therefore be
applied in the Group’s first annual report after becoming effective

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

These amendments range from removal of the corndor mechamsm as well as the concept of expected returns on
plan assets to simple clanfications and re-wording These amendments do not have a material impact to the
Group’s financial posittion or performance and become effective for annual penods beginning on or after |
January 2013

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabiliies — Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments are to the application guidance in IAS 32 and clanfy the requirements for offsetting
financial assets and financial habilites These amendments are not expected to impact the Group’s financial
posttion or performance and become effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 January 2014

IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offseting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilittes — Amendments to IFRS 7

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e g collateral agreements) The disclosures would provide users with informaton that 1s useful 1n evaluating
the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial positton The new disclosures are required for all
recognuised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation
The disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement, irespective of whether they are set off 1n accordance with IAS 32 These
amendments will not impact the Group’s financial position or performance and become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments- Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as 1ssued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of 1AS 39 and apples to
classification and measurement of financial assets as defined in LAS 39 In subsequent phases, the IASB will
address classification and measurement of financial habihties, hedge accounting and derecogmtion The
adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets The Group will quantify the effect in comjunction with the other phases, when 1ssued, to
present a comprehensive picture ” The standard 1s effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 January
2015
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (consinued)
1 Accounting policies (continned)

IFRS 10 Conselidated Financial Statements

The objective of [FRS 10 1s to establish procedures in determiming whether 1nclusion of entities 15 required 1n
consolidated financial statements IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities and
changes require management to exercise significant judgement to deterrmine which entities are controlled and
therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent Based on the prehminary analyses performed, IFRS 10 1s
not expected to have any impact on the currently held investments of the Group This standard becomes
effective for annual penods beginmng on or after 1 January 2014

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in [AS 27 related to consohidated financial
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and [AS 28 These
disclosures relate to an entity’s mterests 1n subsidiaries, jont arrangements, associates and structured entities
This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and discliosure requirements The Group 1s currently assessing the
impact that this standard will have on the financial position and performance, but based on the preliminary
analyses, no material impact 1s expected This standard becomes effective for annual periods begmning on or
after 1 January 2013

Annual Improvements May 2012
These improvements will not have an impact on the Group, but include
IFRS I First-time Adopnion of mternational Fiancial Reporting Standards

This improvement clanfies that an entity that stopped applying IFRS m the past and chooses, or 1s required, to
apply IFRS, has the option to re-apply IFRS 1 If IFRS 1 1s not re-applied, an entity must retrospectively restate
its financial statements as 1f1t had never stopped applying IFRS

IAS I Presentation of Financial Statements

This smprovement clanfies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the
mimmum required comparative information Generally, the mimimum required comparative information 1s the
previous period

IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment

This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment are not inventory

ITAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation

This improvement clanfies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total segment habiliues 1n
interim financial statements This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual
disclosures

These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (contintied)
Judgements, estunates and assumptions

Management are required to make judgements, estumates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported assets and habihties, mcome and expenses Judgements, estimates and assumptions are
continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and vanous other factors, mncluding expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The estimates and assumptions that have sigmficant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying value
of assets and habihities are discussed further below

Judgements
Impawment of non-financial assets

The Group has significant carrying value of goodwall held within intangible assets on the balance sheet An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating umt exceeds 1ts recoverable amount,
which 1s the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value in use The fair value less costs to sell
calculation 1s based on available data from binding sales transactions in arm’s length transactions of simlar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset The value in use calculation
15 based on a discounted cash flow model

The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next ten years The recoverable amount 15 most sensitive to
the sales growth, operating costs, growth rate for extrapolated cash flows and the discount rate The key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount, ncluding a sensitivity analysis, are further explamned in
note 11

Additional judgements are made with regard to provisions for onerous leases (note 20) Judgement is applied in
determumng when a provision should be booked and its value, based on changing circumstances around the
trading or sub-letting of a site Additional judgements are also made with regard to doubtful debt (note 15) and
hugation Judgement 1s applied in determining whether control exists over entities and the fair value of the
assets and habilities determined at the point control 1s achieved with their subsequent results consolidated mnto
the financial statements (note 13)

Estimates and assumptions
Penston benefits

The carrying value of the habihties relating to the defined benefit pension scheme 1s valued using an actuanal
vatuation This valuation 1s based on assumptions All the assumptions used are estimates of future events
Further details about the key assumptions vused are given in note 19

Share-based payment transactions

The Group estimates fair value for share-based payment transactions depending on the terms and conditions of
the grants This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate mputs to the valuation model including
assumptions of the expected life of the share option, share price, volatiity and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed n note 19

Additional estimates and assumptions are made with regard to inventory net realisable values (note 14) and the
likelithood that tax assets ¢an be realised (note 21) Actual results may differ from these estimates
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are all entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity 5o as to obtan benefits from 1ts activities
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting vear as the parent company All mtragroup balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits ansing from them, are ehmtnated

Subsidiaries which the Group control but do not own are consolidated at carrying value, the difference between
the carrying value and fair value of the assets and habilities of these subsidiaries is not matenial The carrying
value of the non-controlling interests 15 recogmsed separately in equity and the profit attnbutable to non-
controlling interests 1s disclosed separately within the censolidated income statement

Business combinations and goodw:ll

Business combmations from 1 July 2009 are accounted for under IFRS 3 (revised) ‘Buswess Combinations’
using the acqusition method The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-controllng interest m the
acquiree The choice of measurement of non-controlling nterest, either at far value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s 1dentifiable net assets 15 determined on a transaction by transaction basis  Acquisition
costs meurred are expensed and included in operating costs When the Group acquires a busmness, 1t assesses the
financial assets and lhiabilities assumed for appropniate classification and designation n accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date

Goodwill 1s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the
consideration transferred and the amount recogmsed for the non-controlling interest over the net identifiable
amounts of the assets acquired and the labiliies assumed m exchange for the business combination
Identifiable intangible assets, meeting either the contractual-legal or separability criterion are recogrused
separately from goodwill Contmgent habilities representing a present obligation are recogmsed 1f the
acquisition-date fair value can be measured rehably

If the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount recogtused for
the non-controlling interest 1s lower than the fair value of assets, liabiliies and contingent hiabilities and the fair
value of any pre-existing interest held in the business acquired, the difference 1s measured 1n profit and loss

After imtial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired mn a business combination 15, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, rrespective of
whether other assets or habilities of the acquiree are assigned to those umts Each unit, or group of umits, to
which goodwill 1s altocated shall represent the lowest level wathin the entity at which the goodwall 1s momtored
for internal management purposes and not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating umt and part of the operation within that umt 1s disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 1s tncluded in the carrying amount of the operation when
determiming the gain or loss on disposal of the operation Goodwill disposed of 1n this circumstance 13
measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (connnued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency

The presentational currency of the Group 1s Sterling  The primary functional currency of the parent and
substdiary companies is also Sterling

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated n foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date  Foreign exchange differences are taken to the
1ncome statement, except when hedge accounting 1s applied and dhfferences are taken to other comprehensive
mncome

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost n a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction

The assets and liabilines of foreign operations are translated at the spot rate ruling at the balance sheet date The
income and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the period where this rate
approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions

Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign operations are recogmised 1n other comprehensive
income They are released mto the income statement upon disposal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are carried imitially at cost Following mitial recogmition, the historic cost model 1s
apphed, with imtangible assets being carmed at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses Intangible assets wath a finite life have no residual value and are amortised on a straight line basis over
their expected useful lives, with charges included in operating costs, as follows

Brands up to 20 years

Design licences hcence period (5 years)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Certain 1tems of property, plant and equpment that had been revalued to fair value prior to 1 January 2004, the
date of transition to adopted IFRSs, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued ameunt at the
date of that revaluation

Items of property, plant and equipment under construction are valued at cost and not depreciated Depreciation
15 charged from the date the assets are available for use

Assets acquired by way of a finance lease are stated at an amount equal to lower of fair value and the present
value of the mimimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses

Depreciation 15 charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equpment Land 15 not depreciated The estimated useful lives are as
follows

Freehold buildings 30 - 50 years

Properties held under finance leases

and leasehold 1improvements Shorter of 30 - 50 years and the lease period
Fixtures and equipment 3 - 20 years
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (confinued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

All property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment m accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’

An 1item of property, plant and equipment 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to anise from the continued use of the asset Any gam or loss ansing on the derecogmtion of the
asset 18 included 1n the mcome statement

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there 1s any mdicatien of impawment If any such idication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 13
estimated

An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value 1n use and 18
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
from those of other assets or groups of assets Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 1ts recoverable
amount, the asset 1s considered to be impaired and 1s written down to 1ts recoverable amount In assessing
value 1n use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset
Imparrment losses on continuing operations are recogmsed 1n the income statement in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset

Impairment losses recogmised 1n respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis A cash generating unit 18 the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets

An mmpairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no imparrment loss had been
recogmsed

Provisions

A provision 15 recogmsed m the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, 1t 15 probable that an outflow of econoruc benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made If the effect 15 matenal,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the nisks specific to the hability

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains, a lease 1s based on the substance of the
arrangement at iception date and whether the fulfillment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a night to use the asset

Group as a lessee

Leases mn which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance leases Other leases are classified as operating leases

Where land and bulldings are held under leases the deternmnation of the land 1s considered separately from that
of the buildings

Fnance leases

Assets acquired by way of a finance lease are recogmsed at an amount equal to the lower of the fair value and
the present value, calculated using the nterest rate mmplieit in the lease, of the mimmum lease payments at
inception of the lease with a corresponding liability as an obligation to pay future rentals Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the outstanding obligation so as to produce a constant rate of
mterest on the remaming balance of the hability
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (conrinued)

Leases (continued)

Operating leases

Rental payments are taken to the income statement on a straight line basis over the hife of the lease Leases that
contain predetermined fixed rental increases are accounted for such that the increases are recogmsed on a
straight line basis over the hife of the lease Lease incentives recerved are recogmsed in the incomne statement as
an integral part of the total lease expense

Prepaid operating leases are recogmised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease
Group as a lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included n property, plant and equpment and depreciated over
their useful economuc lives Rental income, including the effect of lease incentives, 1s recogmised on a straight
line basis over the lease term

Frnancial instruments

Financial assets and liabihines are recogmsed when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the relevant instrument and derecogmised when 1t ceases to be a party to such provisions

Fmancial assets and habilities

The Group classifies 1ts financial assets and liabilities n the following categories financial assets at far value
through prefit and loss, loans and receivables, interest bearing loans and borrowings, denvatives designated as
hedges and trade payables

Management determmes the classification of its mvestments at imhal recogmbion and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date

All financial assets and habihities are recogmsed imtially at fair value The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there 1s objective evidence that financial assets are impaired

Fmancial assets and habiluies at fawr vatue through profit and loss

Dervatives are categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges Gamns or losses ansing
from changes in the farr value of the financial assets and hiabihities at fair value through profit or loss are
included in the income staternent m the perod in which they arise

Loans and recetvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted 1n an active market and are carned at amortised cost They are included 1n current assets except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date Loans and recervables comprise cash
and short-term deposits and trade and other receivables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded mtially at farr value plus directly atnbutable
transaction costs Subsequently, these liabilines are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method Gams or losses ansing on repurchase, settlement or cancellation of habilities are recognised
respectively in finance income or finance cost

Offsetting of financial struments

Fimancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there 1s a
legaily enforceable nght to offset the recogmised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and seftle the liability sumultaneously
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments (conttnued)

Fair values

Farr value 1s determined using appropnate valuation techmiques  Such techmques may include using recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to the current value of another mstrument that 1s substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models

Derwative financial instruments and hedging

Denvative financial mstruments (“denvatives™) are used to manage nsks ansing from changes n foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations

Derivatives are stated at their fair value The fair value of foreign currency derivative coniracts 1s their market
value at the balance sheet date Market values are calculated using mathematical models and are based on the
duration of dervative together with quoted market data including interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
market volatility at the balance sheet date

For those derivatives designated as hedges and for which hedge accounting 1s desired, the hedging relanonship
15 formally designated and documented at 1ts inception This documentation 1dentifies the nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the nature of the nsk being hedged and how effectiveness will
be measured throughout 1ts duration

All of the Group’s hedges are considered to be cash flow hedges, hedging exposure to variability in cash flows
that are exther attributable to a particular nisk associated with a recognised asset or hability or a highly probable
forecast transaction

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging nstrument 1s recogmsed directly
as other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion 1s recogmised in profit and loss  Amounts taken to
other comprehensive mcome are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when a forecast sale or purchase occurs

If a forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, the amounts previously recognised 1n equity are
transferred to profit and loss If the hedging mstrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised without
replacement or rollover, or 1ts designation as a hedge 15 revoked, amounts previously recognised wn other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction occurs and are
transferred to the income statement

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency nisk n forecasted
transactions and firm commitments Refer to note 18 for further details

Inventories
Inventonies compnse goods for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Goods at warehouses are valued at weighted average cost Cost mcludes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition  Inventories at retail outlets are valued at
average cost prices

Trade and other recervables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their onginal invoiced value (discounted 1f matenial) as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible

Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short term deposits compnise cash balances and calt deposits with an onginal matunty of three months
or less Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 1integral part of the Group’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables, other than itercompany loans, are non-interest bearing and are stated at their
nonmunal value

Taxation

Taxation comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised 1n the income statement except to the extent that
1t relates to items recognised directly in equuty, in which case 1t 15 recogmsed n equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided on all temporary differences between the carrymg amounts of assets and habihities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes except

+  the mitial recogmition of goodwill or of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
other than mn a business combination,

* n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianies, associates and
joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 15
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse n the foreseeable future, and

e  deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s measured on an undiscounted basis based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised 1n the Group’s mcome statement except for costs that are directly attributable to
the construction of buldings which are capitalised and ncluded wathin the imnal cost of a building
Capitahisation of borrowing costs ceases when the property 1s ready for use The nterest rate appled 1s based
on the average rate of general borrowings outstanding dunng a penod

Pensions and other post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution penston plans are recognised as an expense 1n the imncome
statement as incurred

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation 1n respect of its defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service n the current and prior periods, that
benefit 1s discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets 1s deducted The
calculation 1s performed by a quahfied actuary using the projected unit credit method The operating and
financing costs of the scheme are recognised 1n the period in which they anse

Actuanal gains and losses are recogmsed in full in the statement of other comprehensive income in the period
mn which they occur

The Group 1s subject to mimimum funding requirements in the UK and does not have an unconditional nght to a
refund of a surplus Tlus results in an obligation which 1s recognised as an additional habihity and an increase 10
other comprehensive income
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recogrtion

Revenue represents sales to customers through retail outlets and online, excluding value added tax Revenue 15
recognised net of intragroup transactions, staff discounts, coupons and the free element of multi-save
transactions

Incomeﬁ‘om concesstons and commissions

Income from concessions and commissiens 1s based on the terms of the contract and 1s in¢cluded within rental
mcome

Interest and dinvidend wcome

Interest income 15 recogmised n the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method
Dividend income 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments 15
established

Supplier income

Supplier mcentives, rebates and discounts are recogmised at the pont that they are earned and agreed with the
supplier for each relevant contract Amounts are recogmsed as a deduction 1n operating costs

Share-based payments

For all habihities ansing from share-based payment arrangements the Group has applied IFRS 2 ‘Share-Based
Payments’ to habilities that were settled on or after 7 November 2002

The share option programme allows Group employees to acquire shares of the ultimate parent company, these
awards are granted by the Group The fair value of options granted 1s 1mitially measured at grant date and
spread over the period duning which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment The charge 15
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase n liabihties The fair value of the share
option 15 measured based on an option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the instruments were granted The hability 1s remeasured at each balance sheet date and at settlement
date and any changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement during the vesting period These
share based payment transactions are considered as cash settled

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s sharcholders 1s recogmsed as a hability 1n the Group’s financial
statements 1n the period 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders

2 Segment reporting

The Group 1s engaged 1n a single reportable operating segment of business, being the retailing of food, clothing,
home and leisure products, fuel and services i a single geographical segment, the United Kingdom and online
The Group 1s not reliant on any individual major customers

In ine with the Group’s reporting framework and management structure, key operating decisions are made by
the Executive Board which 1s considered to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker for the Group All
sigmficant revenue 1s generated by the sale of goods through retail outlets 1n the UK The operations of all
product areas of the business are subject to simifar economic charactenstics and are sold 1n a simlar retail
environment

The Group has taken these factors into account together with the core principals of IFRS 8 in deterrmining that it
has a single reportable operating segment
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2 Segment reporting {continued)

Revenue for the year 15 as follows

31 December 2012

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

fm £m

Sale of goods 20,247 6 19,418 3
Fuel 2,595 8 2,4204
Total revenue 22,843 4 21,8477

After excluding revenue on fuel, hike-for-like sales growth 1s 1 0% mn 2012 (excluding VAT)

3 Operating costs

The operating profit from continuing operations 15 stated after (charging)/crediting the following

Year Ended

31 December

2012

£m

Cost of mventories recognised as an expense (16,580 2)

Cost of mventones written off in the year (397 8)

Employment costs frote 5) (2,464 7T)

Amorusation of intangible assets {(note 11) (16)

Depreciation (note 10)

- Owned assets (3952)

- Assets held under finance leases 19
Operating lease expense

- Plant and equipment 49 1)

- Property (898)

Rental ncome 441

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (213)

License fees patd 1o fellow subsichary of ulimate parent company (note 26) (11 8)

Year Ended
31 December
2011

£m

(16,428 0)
(395 2)
(2,362 0)
32)

(378 2)
(15)

(47 5)
(84 3)

899
(175)
(11 9)

Rental income decline 1s the result of a reclassification of home shopping dehvery income of £40 2m (2011

£35 7m) to revenue in the year

4 Auditors’ remuneration
Year Ended
31 December
2012
Within operating costs £m
Fees payable to company’s audrtor for the audil of parent company and
consolidated financial statements 03

Year Ended
31 December
2011

£m

03
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5 Employee numbers and costs

The average number of people employed by the Group (including directors) during the year was as follows

Number of employees

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Total
ASDA - Retall & Distribution 175,015 173,713
- Home offices 3,777 3,431
178,792 177,144
Full me equivalents
ASDA - Retad & Distnibution 111,517 110,127
- Home offices 3,604 3,333
115,181 113,460
The aggregate payroll costs of these people were as follows
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
fm £m
Wages and salanes 2,176 1 2,i032
Share-based payments charge 1059 346
Social secunty costs 1245 1239
(Other pension costs 582 100 3
24647 23620

Other pension costs comprise the cost of the defined contribution schemes All pension related costs and
income are disclosed 1n note 19

6 Directors’ remuneration

The total remuneration during the year is as follows

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

£'000 £000

Directors' remuneration 6,099 6,705
Share-based payments 3,118 2,054
Post employment benefits 0 56
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6 Directors’ remuneration {contimied)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
number number

Number of directors who were active members of the defined benefit scheme
during the year 0 6
Number of directors who exercised share options 6 6
Number of directors entitled to receive shares under long term incentive schemes 10 10

Amounts in respect of the highest paid director are as follows

£000 £000
Total remuneration excluding pensions 1,802 1,415
Total share-based payments 1,910 706
Total accrued pension at the year end 44 44

Included within the remuneration totals above are emoluments and short term benefits in respect of the
following directors, which were mn respect of their services to the Broadstreet Great Wilson Europe Group (the
ultimate parent company for the UK) as a whole R Mayfield, J J McKenna, A Clarke, R Bendel, A J Moore, C
R Redfield, K Hubbard, H Tatum, E Doohan and S Smuith Tt 1s not possible to allocate their remuneration to
individual companies within the Group

None of the directors were members of the defined contribution schemes during the year (2011 three)

7 Financial income
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
im £m
Bank interest recervable 16 14
Net return on pension scheme (note 19) 101 30
Financial income 117 44
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8 Financial costs

Interest payable on bonds - paid to fellow group undertakings
External interest payable

Net interest payable on amounts owed to group undertakings
Finance lease interest

Interest capitalised

Financial costs

9 Income tax expense

Recogmised in the income statement

Current tax

UK corporation tax on profit for the year
Adjustments 1n respect of prior penods

Current tax charge for the year

31 December 2012

The current tax prior period adjustment relates to the finalisation of group relief balances

Deferred tax

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustment in respect of prior peneds

Adjustment ansing from change 1n tax rate

Reduction in deferred tax asset relating to pension obligauon

Total tax charge for the year

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

fm £m

©9 99

(03) (02)

(703) (78 4)

42 43)

64 103

(783 (82 5)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

fm £m

1957 1355

(10 410

1947 176 5
(239 (74)

14 65

(152) (119)

74 307

(303 179

164 4 194 4
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9 Income tax expense {continued)

Reconcihation of effective tax rate

ASDA Group Limited

Dhrectors” report and financial statements

31 December 2012

A reconciliation of the total tax charge compared to the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK of 24 5%

(2011 26 5%) applied to the profit on ordinary activities before tax 1s as follows

Profit before tax

Tax using the UK cerporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%)
(Income not taxable)/Non-deductible expenses

Non-qualifying depreciation

Loss on non-qualifying fixed assets

Group relief not pad for

Share Options costs

Adjustments 1n respect of prior penods

Change 1n tax rate
Other

Total 1ax charge for the year

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

£fm £m

7743 767 8

1897 2035

amn 10

259 211

11 21

@4 (68 4)

83 -

03 475

(15 2) (119)

[OE}] (0 5)

164 4 194 4

The Finance Act 2012 received Royal Assent on 17 July 2012 and enacted a reduction in the main rate of
corporation tax to 24% with effect from 1 April 2012 and to 23% from 1 April 2013 Deferred tax has therefore

been provided at 23%

On 20 March 2013, 1t was announced 1n the 2013 Budget that the main rate of corporation tax effective from 1
Apnil 2014 will be 21% and that a further reduction of 1% will be apphed to bring the mamn rate of corporation

tax down to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015

If these above changes had been substantially enacted at the balance sheet date the impact of the proposed

reductions from 23% to 20% would reduce the deferred tax hability by approximately £13 3m

In addition, Finance Act 2011 introduced changes to the capital allowances regime, inctuding a reductton 1n the
rate of capital allowances on plant and machinery additions from 20% to 18% with effect from 1 April 2012

29




ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (contmued)

9 Income tax expense (continued)

Tax relating to components of the consolhidated statement of comprehensive income

31 December 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
£m £fm
Current tax (credit)/charge on
Pensions (172) -
Foreign exchange movements (12) -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge on
Pensions 93 (44 0)
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 47) 21
Total tax on tems credited to consolidated statement of changes in equity (13 8) {41 9)
Tax on items credited directly to the consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
fm £m
Deferred tax credit on
Share-based payments (02) -
Total tax on items credited to consolidated statement of changes in equity 02 -
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10 Property, plant and equipment
Plant,
Finance leases & equipment,
Freehold leasehold fixtures & Assets under
properties improvements fittings constraction Total
£fm £m £m £fm £m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2011 7,3545 6511 2,5321 2332 10,770 9
Additions at cost and transfers from
assets under construction 348 7 264 2818 309 687 8
Acquisition of a subsidiary 293 5 - 326 - 3261
Disposals {15 1) (87D (483 5) - {507 3)
Transfers (29 4) 270 24 - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 7,9522 6958 2,365 4 264 1 11,2775
Balance at 1 January 2012 7,9522 6958 2,365 4 264 1 11,2775
Additions at cost and transfers from
assets under constructron 448 0 35 2347 181 704 3
Dsposals (390) (107) (1039 - (153 6)
Transfers (20 6) 206 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 8,340 6 7092 2,496 2 2822 11,828 2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at 1 Januvary 2011 1,063 3 2833 1,807 4 - 3,154 0
Depreciation charge for the year 134 8 289 2160 - 37197
Disposals (32) (12) (479 3) - {483 7)
Transfers ay 10 01 - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 1,193 8 31290 1,544 2 - 3,050 0
Balance at 1 January 2012 1,193 8 3120 1,544 2 - 3,0500
Depreciation charge for the year 149 2 340 213 9 - 3971
Disposals (118) (34) (107 8) - (123 0)
Transfers 03 (03) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 1,331 5 3423 1,650 3 - 3,324 1
Net book value
At 31 December 2011 6,758 4 3838 8212 264 1 8,227 5
At 31 December 2012 7,009.1 3669 845.9 282.2 8,504.1
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10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cumulative amount of capitalised mterest included n the cost of fixed assets 15 £249 2m (2011

£242 8m) Details of interest capitalised durning the year are given 1n note 8

Properties held under finance leases have the following net book values

Cost
Depreciation

Net book value

11 Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 January 2011
Acquisitions of subsidiary

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012
Acquisitions of subsidiary (note 13)

At 31 December 2012

Amortisation
At 1 January 2011
Amorusation during the year

At 31 December 2011

At | January 2012
Amortisation duning the year

At 31 December 2012

Net book value at 31 December 2011

Net book value at 31 December 2012

2012 2011

fm fm

7217 727

(12 8) (109)

599 61 8

Design

Iicences Brands Goodwill Total
£m £m £m f£m
64 317 - 381
- 16 482 3 4839
64 333 482 3 5220
64 333 482 3 5220
- - i70 170
64 333 499 3 5390
64 g0 - 14 4
- 32 - 32
64 112 - 176
64 112 - 176
- 16 - 16
64 128 - 192
- 221 482 3 504 4
- 20.5 499.3 5198

The design licences asset has been amortised on a straight line basis over the licence penod of 5 years The
George brand 1s being amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life of 20 years (13 years

remaming)
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11 Intangtble assets (conninied)

Brands include intangible assets acquired in the prior year through business combinations The Netto brand
acquired has been fully amortised during the prior year on a straight line basis over 1ts estimated useful life of 6
months

See business combinations (note 13) for detasl of goodwll ansing on acqusimon of subsidiary As at 31
December 2012, goodwill has been tested for impairment as follows

Impairment testing of goodwill

Netto Acquisttion

Goodwill of £482 3m arose on the acquisiion of Netto Foodstores Limited on 13 Apnl 2011 (note 13) This
has been tested for umpairment as at 31 December 2012 by allocating to the chain of converted Netto stores
along with other related assets This represents the lowest level to which management monitors goodwill

The recoverable amount 1s determuned based on a value 1n use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five year period This 1s the period to which
specific reliable forecasts have been made The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections 1s
11% and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond specific forecast pertod 1s 3 0%

The calculation of value 1n use 1s most sensitive to the assumptions of sales growth, operating costs, growth rate
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the imtial forecast penod and the discount rate

Sales growth - sales expectations are iittally formed based on sales achieved by the Netto chamn since
acquisition and sales m existing stores of similar sizes The forecast then maps the growth profile to that
expected based on historic growth levels seen by the Group

Operating costs - some costs are directly attributable to individual stores  Other costs denve from central or
shared costs for the whole Group and must be allocated to the chain on a reasonable basis Operating cost
forecasts for the Netto chain reflects that experienced since acquisition and existing similar stores 1 2011 and
2012 extrapolated as a proportion of sales

Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the initial forecast period - long term growth rate
forecasts are based on long term economic GDP growth forecasts for the UK

Discount rate - the pre tax discount rate used 1n calculating the value 1n use represents an assessment of the
rate of return a market participant would expect for an equally nisky investment This has been calculated by
estimating the weighted average costs of capital of other likely acquirers as well as that of the Group

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use, based upon calculations performed, management behieve that no
reasonably possible change 1n any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the chain of
Netto stores to matenally exceed 1ts recoverable amount

Turkmen Tedarik Hizmetlers Acquisition

Goodwill of £17 Om arose on the acquisition of Turkmen Tedank Hizmetlen on 26 Apnil 2012 (note 13) This
has been tested for impairment as at 31 December 2012 by assessing the present value of forecasted cash
savings ansing from the synergies achieved as a result of the acquisiion Goodwll 1s allocated to a single cash
generating umt, being the acquired sourcing company

The recoverable amount 1s determined based on a value n use calculation using cashflow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five year penod The pre-tax discount rate
apphed to the cashflow projections 15 11% and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cashflows beyond
specific forecast period 1s 3 0%

The calculation of value 1n use 15 most sensitive to the assumptions of growth rate used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the nitial forecast period and the discount rate
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11 Intangible assets (continved)

Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the imtial forecast period - long term growth rate
forecasts are based on long term econormic GDP growth forecasts for the UK

Discount rate - the pre tax discount rate used m calculating the value In use represents an assessment of the
rate of return a market participant would expect for an equally risky investment This has been calculated by
estimating the weighted average costs of capital of other hkely acquirers as well as that of the Group

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regard to the assessment of value n use, based upon calculations performed, management believe that no

reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill to
matenally exceed expected future cashflows associated wath the acquisition

12 Operating lease prepayments
2012 2011
£fm £m
Operating lease prepayments - current 19 17
- non-current 122 4 1252
1243 126 9
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13 Business combinations

Acquisttion of Turkmen Tedarik Hizmetleri
On 26 Apnl 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Turkmen Tedank Hizmetlen, a clothing
sourcing company based in Turkey The acqusition will help the Group extend its sourcing capabihiies and

reduce lead times enabling a quicker reaction to changes in the market

The following table summanses the consideration paid for Turkmen Tedank Hizmetlen and the fair value of
assets acquired and the Liabilities assumed at the acquisition date

Purchase consideration at 26 April 2012 fm

Total consideration 175

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and labihiies assumed

Cash and cash equivalents 09
Property, plant and equipment 02
Trade and other payables 06)
Total idennfiable net assets 05
Goodwill (note 11) 170

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

Consideration pard (included n cash flows from investing activities) (17 5)
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included 1n cashflows from investing activities) 09
Net cash flow on acqumisition {16 6)

The goodwill derives from buying synergies as a result of the acquisition No other separate intangibles were
identified requinng recognition under IAS 38 None of the goodwill recogmsed 15 expected to be deductable for
Imcome tax purposes

No external post acquisition revenue 1s attnbutable to the acquired business as the purpose of the acquisition
was to transform the supply chain and extend sourcing capabilities Simularly, had the acquisition taken place
on | January 2012, there would be no additional revenue earned by the Group

Acquisttion of Netto Foodstores Limited

In the prior year, on 13 Apnl 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Netto Foodstores Limuted,
a retailer of food and household goods based 1n the Umited Kingdom The transaction enabled the Group to
convert Netto’s UK locations into ASDA stores

The total consideration of £752 million was satisfied 1n cash which was funded through an intercompany loan
from Wal-Mart Stores (UK) Limuted, a fellow subsicdhary of the Group’s ultimate parent company
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13 Business combinations (continued)

The following table summanses the consideration paid for Netto Foodstores Limited, the fair value of assets
acquired and the habilities assumed at the acquisition date

Purchase consideration at 13 April 2011 £m
Cash 7520
Total considerahon 7520
Recognised amounts of idenntfiable assets acquired and habilities assumed £m
Cash and cash equivalents 80
Property, plant and equipment (nore 10) 3261
Brand names (note /1) 16
Inventories 354
Trade and other receivables 119
Trade and other payables (63 0)
Provisions {nore 20) (15)
Deferred tax (wore 21) {48 8)
Total identifiable net assets 2697
Goodwill (note 11) 482 3

Analysis of cash flows on acquisiion

Consideration paid (tncluded n cash flows from investing activities) (752 0)
Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) (102)
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included 1n cash flows from investing activities) 80
Net eash flow on acqmisition (7542)

Goodwill arising on the acquisihon derives from being able to convert the existing Netto sites into ASDA
stores The business combination provides the Group access to new local markets and customers across the
UK, enables synergies by leveraging the Group’s supply chain and logistics network and brings an expenienced
retml workforce 1n their local community An mtangible for the temporary retail brand was separately
recogmsed No other separate intangibles were identified requiring recognition under [AS38 None of the
goodwill recognised 1s expected to be deductable for income tax purposes

Other acquusttions

From 1 January 2011, the Group conschdated the results of Forza Foods Limited, Kober Limited and Vinpack
Limited on the basis of control obtamned under the rules of [IAS 27 Indicators of control which are present
include the ability to influence the composition of the board, the ability to sigmificantly influence the operating
and financial activities of each entity and the ability to actively participate 1n key decision making due to the
signing of legal agreements

Forza Foods Limited, Kober Limited and Vinpack Limited are suppliers of goods to ASDA and do not make
significant sales to any other third party customers The fair value of the consideraticn to the Group 1s £ml The
net assets recognised on consohdation were £12 5m, representing property, plant and equpment of £24 8m,
cash and cash equvalents of £4 lm, inventones of £10 7m, trade and other payables of (£27 1m) The non
controlling interest represents 100% of the net assets measured at fair value, with no goodwill recogmsed Fair
value 15 determined as being not matenally different to the carmying value of the assets and habilmes of these
entiies These entities contnbuted profit of £11 5m (2011 £4 5m) for the year included 1n the Group’s income
statement
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14 Inventories

Goods held for resale
Goods not held for resale

15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Provision for doubtful debts
Other recervables

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts owed by group enfities

2012 2011
£m im
1,157 4 1,013 8
23 20
1,159 7 1,015 8
2012 201
£m £m
1298 134 4
(10 5) (113
789 655
1020 936
3002 2822
1,797 0 1,392 0

Trade receivables are non-interest bearmg and are generally on 30-90 day terms As at 31 December 2012,
trade recervables at nominal value of £10 5m (2011 £11 3m) were imparred and fully provided for on the basis
of the age of the debt and estimated ability of the customer to make payment Movements i the provision for

doubtful debts in the year were as follows

At 1 January
Net charge for the year
Provision utilised

At 31 December

2012 2011
£m £m
113 g0
24 g1
(32 (4 8)
105 113

There are no 1ssues regarding the recoverability of amounts owed by Group entities

37




ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
15 Trade and other recenvables (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the analysis of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 1063 975
Up to 3 months past due 131 256
1194 123 1

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was imally granted up to the reporting date Accordingly, the
directors believe that there 1s no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables that were neither past due nor impared related to a number of
independent customers for whom there 15 no history of default

The allowance for doubtful debt assumes VAT 1n relation to the impaired balances will be fully recoverable

16 Cash and short term deposits
2012 2011
fm £m
Cash and short term deposits 4i85 434 1

17 Trade and other payables

2012 2011
£m £m
Trade payables 1,934 5 1,902 2
Other taxes and social secunty 1921 206 8
Other payables 1492 1455
Accrued expenses 6326 6171
29084 28716
Amounts owed to group entities 2,862 6 2,6510

The Group deals with over ten thousand separate supplers and has established trading terms which are
appropriate to the particular relationship and product supplied Whenever an order 1s placed the parties will be
aware of the payment terms and 1t 1s the Group’s policy to abide by these terms when satisfactory mvoices have
been received

For terms and conditions relating to amounts owed to related parties, refer to note 26
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18 Financial instruments

Farr values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group’s pnincipal financial struments during the year compnsed cash, cash equivalents and borrowings
Other financial assets and habilities, such as trade receivables, trade payables, and accruals anse directly from
the Group’s operating activities  The difference between the carrying value and the fair value of these financial
mstruments 15 not matenal Derivatives designated as hedges are included at the fair value of the financial
mstrument

In the valuation of financial mstruments during the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group used valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a sigmficant effect on the recorded value are observable, erther
directly or indirectly

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used 1n estinating the far values of financial
mstruments

Floating rate borrowings — the fair value of floating rate borrowings approximates to carrying value because
mterest rates are reset to market rates at intervals of less than one year

Fixed rate borrowings — the farr value of fixed rate borrowings 1s estimated by discounting the future
contracted cash flow using appropnate interest rates to net present value

Trade and other recevables, trade and other payables — the fair value of trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables 1s measured as the carrying value of contractual future cash flows

Derwvatives designated as hedges — denivatives designated as hedges are measured at fair value by estimating
the future settlement rates of forward contracts entered into

IFRS 7 requires an analysis of financial instruments carnied at fair value, by valuation method All financial
instruments carried at fair value within the Group are categorised as Level 2 instruments

2012 2011
£m £m
Current liabilities
Current portion of finance lease Liabilities i4 13
Non-current lrabiiities
Eurobonds 1492 1492
Non-current portion of finance lease liabnlities 352 366
1844 1858
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18 Financial instruments {continued)

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, all borrowings were in Sterling at fixed rates of interest The
finance lease obligations are carmed at amortised cost, which 1s considered to approximate to fair value  The
welighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 156 7% (2011 6 7%)

Amounts owed to fellow subsidiaries are included in trade and other payables within note 17  Details of
obligations under finance leases are included in note 24

On 17 July 1998, the Group 1ssued £150 Om of unsecured 6 5/8 % Eurobonds at 99 441% of nominal value
redeemable at par on 17 July 2015 unless previously redeemed at the Group’s request, at the higher of the
principal amount or a price calculated to provide a yield equal to that earned on 8% Treasury Stock 2015

On 17 September 2007, all of the outstanding Eurobonds 1ssued by the Group were officially migrated from the
Main Market to the Professional Securities Market of the London Stock Exchange

The 2015 Eurobond 1s denominated 1n Sterling and carried at amortised cost Its far value as at 31 December
2012 was £182 9m (2011 £190 Sm) The Eurobonds bear fixed interest, payable annually in arrears

Financral risk management

The treasury function manages the Group’s financial nisk, considering its borrowings and exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations The Group finances 1ts operations through intercompany borrowings and Eurobonds
which were 1ssued a number of years ago and substantially held within the Wal-Mart group The Group utihises
its cash balances as well as bank overdrafts to satisfy short-term cash flow requirements Foreign currency
exposure 1s managed through entering into forward currency contracts

Interest rate risk

The Group’s long term borrowings are at fixed interest rates, through the 1ssue of Eurobonds which are listed
on the Professional Securities Market of the London Stock Exchange, with the majonty being held by Wal-
Mart group compames As interest rates are fixed on all of the Group’s long term debt, interest rate movements
would not have an impact on profitability, cash flow or equity

The Group’s short term borrowings are all held wath entities which are part of the Wal-Mart group and are at
vanable rates of interest Amounts owed to fellow subsidianies (note 18) attract interest at an effective rate of
6% (2011 6%0)

It 15 anticipated that a 1% movemeni n interest rates, which represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change, would give rise to a decrease/increase 1n net profitabihty of £0 2m (2011 £1 Im)
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The disclosures below exclude short term receivables and payables which are primarily of a trading nature and
expect to be settled within normal commercial terms

Terms and debt repayment schedule as at 31 December 2012

Effective Less than 1102 2103 3t04 4105
nterest rate Total | year years years years years 5+ years
% £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Eurobonds 2015 66 1492 - - 1492 - - -
Finance lease obligations 366 14 16 19 21 24 272
1858 14 16 1511 21 24 272

See note 24 for further information relating to the present value of finance lease obligations

Amounts owed to fellow UK group companies

Loans from Connth Invesiments

Limted 6% 972 8 9728 - - - - -
Loans from Broadstreet Great

Wilson Europe Limited 6% 366 4 3664 - - - - -
Loans from Wal-Mart LN (UK}

Larmted 6% 1,5162 1,516 2 - - - - -

2,8554 28554 - - - - R

Terms and debt repayment schedule as at 31 December 2011

Effective Less than 1to2 2t03 3to4d 4t05
interest rate Total 1 year years years years years 5+ years
% £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Eurobonds 2015 66 1492 - - - 1492 - -
Finance lease obligations 379 i3 14 16 19 21 296
1871 13 14 16 1511 21 296

Amounts owed to fellow UK group companies

Loans from Connth Investments

Limited 6% 941 5 9415 - - - - -
Loans from Broadstreet Great

Wilson Europe Limited 6% 3555 3555 - - - - -
Loans from Wal-Mart LN {UK)

Limited 6% 1,3513 1,3513 - - - - -

2,6483 26483 - - - - -
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Foreign currency risk

The Group purchases goods and services denominated in currencies other than Sterling Cash flows can be
affected by movements 1n exchange rates, pnmanly US Dollars, Euros, Austrahan Dollars and HK Dollars
Purchases in US Dollars are managed through the use of forward centracts

The Group 1mplemented hedge accounting during the year ended 31 December 2010 The Group has forward
currency hedging contracts outstanding at 31 December 2012, designated as hedges of expected future
purchases from suppliers in US dollars The forward currency contracts are being used to hedge the foreign
currency rnisk of the future purchases The terms of the forward currency hedging contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the commtments and none exceed a period of more than 12 months after the
31 December 2012 Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement
when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss

The cash flow hedges of the expected future purchases were assessed to be highly effective and as at 31
December 2012, a net unrealised loss of £10 7m (2011 £5 1 gain) was included n the hedging reserve in
respect of hedging contracts The net loss recognised n other comprehensive income duning the year 1n respect
of these hedging contracts was £15 8m (2011 6 7m net gain)

As the Group manages 1ts foreign currency exposure through the use of forward currency contracts, changes in
exchange rates are not expected to have a sigmficant impact on profitability or cash flow It 1s anticipated that a
5% movement 1 the US dollar/Sterling exchange rate, which represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change, would give nise to a decrease/increase 1n equity of £31 9m (2011 £14 2m) There
would be no impact on profit from this movement

Credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of the credit risk within the Group The maximum credsit nsk exposure
relating 1o financial assets 1s represented by their carrying value as at the balance sheet date See note 15 for
further information on trade receivables

The Group has established procedures to mimimise the risk of default by trade debtors mcluding detailed credit
checks undertaken before a customer 15 accepted Historically, these procedures have proved effective n
minimising the level of impaired and past due debtors

Liquidity risk

The Group’s treasury function ensures that the Group continues to have sufficient funding by monitoring
rolling forecasts of the Group’s cash flows The Group’s objective 15 to maintain a balance between continuaty
of funding and flexibihty through the use of short term borrowings and intercompany balances At 31
December 2012, the Group had no short term borrowings The Group’s long term debt comprises the
Eurobonds which are redeemable in 2015

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held cash of £418 5m (2011 £434 1m), utihised along with overdrafts
where necessary, to secure short term flexibility At 31 December 2012, the Group had uncommuitted overdraft
facihties of £300m (2011 £30 Om), standby credit facihities (including bonds and guarantees) of £151 3m
(2011 £135 Om) and uncommtted line of credit facilities of £250 Om (2011 £250 0m) Cash is placed on short
term deposit wherever possible

+

The following table summanses the matunty profile of the Group’s financial habilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments The disclosed financial denvative instruments are the gross undiscounted cash flows
However, these amounts may be settled gross or net
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Year ended 31 December 2012

Eurcbonds

Finance lease obligations

Financial denvatives

Trade and other payables

Amounts owed to fellow UK group companies

Year ended 31 December 2011

Eurobonds

Finance lease obligations

Financial derivatives

Trade and other payables

Amounts owed to fellow UK group companies

Capuial risk management

ASDA Group Lumited
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Between

Within 1 1 and 5 After 5
year years years Total
£m £fm £m £m
99 169 & - 179 7
57 228 479 76 4
468 2 - - 468 2
2,908 4 - - 2,908 4
2,855 4 - - 28554
6,247 6 1926 479 6,488 1

Between

Within } 1 and 5 After 5
year years years Total
£m fm fm £m
99 1797 - 1896
57 228 536 821
3534 - - 3534
2,8716 - - 2,8716
2,648 3 - - 2,648 3
58889 2025 536 6,1450

The Group 1s subject to the risk that 1ts capital structure will not be sufficient to support the growth of the
business In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of intercompany
loans payable or receivable to/from the Wal-Mart group of companies There were no changes to the Group’s
approach to capital management during the year Full details of the Group’s approach to capital management

and how the Group define capital 1s provided on page 5

Full details of the amount of intercompany loans payable or recervable to/from the Wal-Mart group of
companies 1s disclosed i note 26

19

Employee benefits

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations
Effect of mumimum funding requirement
Fair value of plan assets

Recogmised hlality for defined benefit obligations

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions hability - non-current

Total non-current employee benefits Liability

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions liability - current

Total employee benefits hability

2012 2011

£m £m
(1,710 1} (1,610 0)
{176 4) (190 0)
1,530 1 1,399 9
(356 4) (400 1)
(42 1) (31 8)
(398 5) (4319)
(467 (39 3)
(445 2) (471 2)
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19 Employee benefits (continued)

Pension plans

Total costs charged/(credited) to the income statement n respect of employee benefits

2012 2011
£m fm
Wages and salanes 2,176 1 2,103 2
Share-based payments charge 1056 346
Social secunty costs 1245 1239
Total cost before pension costs 2,406 5 2,2617
Defined benefit pension scheme
Curtailment gain recognised - (57 0)
Current service cost - 66
Transmon payment following scheme closure - 430
Net return on pension scheme (on 30
Total defined benefit scheme gain (10 1) (10 4)
Cost of defined contribution schemes 582 580
Total pensicn expense 481 476
Total employee benefit expense 2,454 6 2,309 3

Pension plans

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans There are two defined
conttibution plans one trust based, and one contract based The assets of the contract based defined
contribution plan are invested with the Prudential Life Assurance Company The assets of the trust based
defined contribution plan are held by both the Legal & General Assurance Society Ltd and the Prudential Life
Assurance Company The assets of the defined benefit pension scheme are placed by the trustees under the
management of a number of professional fund managers The assets of these schemes are held separately from
the Group’s assets

The trustee body of the defined benefit scheme 1s made up of eleven trustees five of these are member
nominated trustees including one pensioner, four are company appomnted, and there are two professional
independent trustees The trustee body of the trust based defined contribution plan 1s made up of nine trustees
four of these are member nominated, four are company appointed, and there 1s one professional independent
trustee  There 15 a governance group in place which monitors the running of the contract based defined
contribution plan This has six members two are nommated by colleagues, and four are company appointed

With effect from 12 February 2011, the defined benefit scheme closed to future accrual and the link between
past service benefits and future salary increases was removed The defined contribution plans are the only
pension arrangements open to current colleagues

The Group's ultimate parent company Wal-Mart Stores, Inc, guarantees ASDA Stores’ obhgations to the
pension scheme up to a maximum amount of £900m This guarantee has no time limt
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19 Employee benefits (contirued)

Pension plans (contmued)

A schedule of contributions s 1 place between the Group and scheme trustees 1n order to pay down the deficit
Under IFRIC 14 this 15 considered to be a numimum funding requrement (also known as a statutory funding
objective) At the current year end the present value of the contributions payable to meet Statutory Funding
Objective requirements exceeds the pension scheme net hability which indicates that n future the scheme
would go into a surplus  As the scheme rules do not provide the Group with an unconditional nght to a refund
in the event of a surplus, under the requirements of IFRIC 14 the mimmum funding requrement creates an
obhgation which 1s recognised as an addional hability of £176 4m

The pension cost relating to the defined benefit pension scheme 1s assessed mn accordance with the advice of an
independent qualified actuary who conducted a full trienmal actuanal valuation as at 5 Apnil 2010 and updated
the results of this valuation 1n accordance with TAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ for the year ended 31 December
2012 Funding levels are monitored on a regular basis in between tnenmal valuations

Movenmtents 1n present value of defined benefit obligation

2012 2011

fm £m

At 1 January (1,610 0) (1,597 4)
Current service cost - (66)
Interest cost (750) 82 1)
Actuanal losses (62 5) B9
Benefits paid 374 280
Curtailment gain - 570
At 31 December (1,710 1) (1,610 0)

A decrease of 0 1% in the discount rate would increase the defined benefit obligation by £39 5m, an increase of

0 1% n the discount rate would reduce the defined benefit obligation by £38 Om

Movements n fawr value of plan assets

2012 2011

£fm £m

At | January 1,3999 1,266 8
Expected return on plan assets 851 851
Actuanal (losses)/gains (7 6) 133
Contnbutions by employer 901 627
Benefits paid {(374) (280)
At 31 December 1,5301 1,399 9
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Pension plans (conried)

Gamn recogmsed 1n the consclidated income statement

2012 2011

£fm £m

Current service cost - {6 6)
Interest on defined benefit pension plan obligation (730) (821
Expected return on defined benefit pension plan assets 851 851
Curtailment gain recognised - 570
Transitton payment to active members - (43 0)
Total gain 101 104

The defined benefit pension scheme gain 1s recognised n the following line items n the consolidated income
statement

2012 2011
fm fm
Operating costs
Curtailment gain recogmsed - 570
Current service cost - (6 6)
Transinon payment following scheme closure - (43 0)
Financeal income
Net return on pension scheme 101 30
Total gamn 101 104

The Group expects to contribute approximately £65 Om to its defined benefit scheme 1n the next financial year

The Group operates two defined contribution pension plans There were no unpaid contnibutions outstanding at the
current or prior year end for the defined contribution schemes The charge for the year for the defined conimbution
schemes1s £58 2m (2011 £58 Om)
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19 Employee benefits (conrnued)

Pension plans (continued)

The amounts recogmised n the statement of other comprehensive income 1n the year were

2012 2011
fm £m
Actuanal (losses¥gamns (7 6) 133
Expenence losses ansing on plan obligat:on (0 2) (0 4)
Changes 1n demographic and financial assumptions underlying the present value of
plan oblhigations (62 3) 85
Actuanal (loss)/gain recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income (70 1) 44
Effect of mimimum funding requirement recogrused 1n statement of comprehensive
Income 136 {190 ®)
Total pension cost recogmsed 1n the siatement of comprehensive income {56 5) (185 6)
Taxation on total pension cost recognised in the statement of other comprehensive
income 79 440
Net pension cost recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (486) (141 6)

The cumulative net actuanal movement reported recognised n the statement of other comprehensive income since

the transition to IFRS are £446 4m (2011 £397 8m)

The fair value of the plan assets and the return on those assets were as follows

2012 2011

£fm £m

Equuty securities 5707 5291

Debt secunties 8141 7238

Property 474 43 4

Other 979 103 6

1,530 1 1,399 9

Actual return on plan assets 715 98 4
Principal actuanal assumptions (expressed as weighted averages)

2012 2011

% %

Discount rate 45 47

Inflation - RPL 30 31

Inflation - CPI 23 24

Future pension increases 30 31

Expected return on plan assets

- Equity secunties 78 78

- Debt secunties 33 31

- Property 78 78

- Other 45 47
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19 Employee benefits (continned)
Pension plans (continued)

As the defined benefit scheme is closed to future accrual, future salary increases 13 no longer an actuanal assumption
m the year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, to develop the expected long-term rate on assets assurmptions, the Group
considered the current level of expected return on nsk free investments (primanly government bonds), the histonical
level of the msk premmum associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio 15 nvested and the
expectations for future returns of each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based
on the asset allocations of the scheme to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions for the
portfohio This resulted n the selection of the assumptions shown above

The Group will be adopting International Financial Reporting Standard — International Accounhing Standard 19
(IAS19 R) on 1 January 2013 Under }AS19 R, the expected return on asset assumption will be replaced with the
discount rate under the net interest cost

The following table illustrates the residual Life expectancy for an average member on reaching age 635, according to
the mortality assumptions used to calculate the pension liabilities

2012 2011

Retiring at reporting date at age 65 Male 232 229
Female 257 252

Retiring at reporting date 1n 25 years at age 65 Male 255 247
Female 2717 272

History of experience gains and losses

The hustory of experience gans and losses for the current and prior periods are as follows

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
% % % % %
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets
Amount (7.6) 133 589 240 (328 3)
Percentage of scheme assets (0.5%) 1 0% 4 6% 22% (33 2%)
Experience adjustments on plan Lhabilities
Amount (0.2) (04 61 7) 3D -
Percentage of scheme habilitics 0.6% 00% (3 9%) (02%) -
Effects of changes 1n the demographic and financial assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme habilities
Amount {62.5) (89 (182 7) (229 9) 3057
Percentage of scheme assets (4.1%) (0 6%) (14 4%) (20 7%) 30 1%
Total amount recogmsed i the statement of other comprehensive income
Amount (70.1) 44 (123 8) (2059 (22 06)
Percentage of scheme assets (4.6%) 03% (9 8%) (18 5%) (2 2%)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (1,710.1) (1,610 0) (1,53974) (1,3227) (1,016 8)
Effect of mimmum funding requirement (176.4) (190 0) - - -
Fair value of plan assets 1,530.1 1,399 9 1,266 8 1,112 7 987 4
Recognised hiabihity for defined benefit obligations (356.4) (400 1) (330 6) (210 0) 294
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Share-based payments

These share-based payment transactions are accounted for as cash settled 1n accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-Based
Payments’

The Group offers five share-based payment schemes to employees to enable them to own shares in the ultimate
parent company, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc These schemes are treated as 1f they are cash settled, despite them being
equity settled by Wal-Mart Stores, Inc The options are revalued at each balance sheet date and ASDA are recharged
by 1ts ultimate parent for its participation in the scheme based on the share price The impact 1s eliminated 1n the
consolidated financial statements of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc and the share options would not be revalued 1f the Group
were granting options on 11s own shares i a way consistent with UK pubhc Limited companies Three of these
schemes nvolve the granting of options to employees to acquire shares in the ulimate parent company at pre-
determined exercise prices and two of the schemes involve the granting of rights to receive shares in the ultimate
parent company for ml consideration The executive performance share plan has performance conditions relating to
the total payout of options 1ssued, no other scheme has any performance conditions attached to the scheme

The total expenses recogmsed for the year ansing from share based payments and the associated amounts recogmsed
in the balance sheet are as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Cash-settled share based payment charge 1059 346
Total carrying amount of liabilities - current 46 7 393
- non-current 421 318

888 711

The number and weighted average exercise prices for the three schemes which nvolve the granting of options to
employees to acquire shares in the ultimate parent company at predetermuned exercise prices are as follows

Weighted average Number of Wetghted average Number of

exercise price options EXEICISe price options

£ (thousands) £ {thousands)

2012 2012 2011 2011

QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 2848 7,313 2879 10,142
Exercised duning the year 28 80 (2,998) 2708 (3,631)
Granted during the vear 29 81 2,043 26 05 1,953
Forfeited during the year 2777 (693) 28 57 (L,151)
Cutstanding at the end of the year 28 48 5,665 28 68 7,313
Exercisable at the end of the year 3012 908 3175 1,572

Share options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year The average share price duning the year to 31
December 2012 was £42 41 (2011 £33 89) The related shares are denominated in US dollars being the reporting
currency of the ulimate parent company The sterling exercise price of the Sharesave scheme options 1s fixed at the
exchange rate on 1ssue, for all other schemes the exercise price 15 denominated i US dollars and the sterling
equivalent 15 translated based on the current exchange rate
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Share-based payments (continued)

Sharesave scheme

The scheme has been in existence for emplovees since 1982 and gained HMRC approval in 2000 Employees with
six months service are invited to join the scheme annually Options are granted annually te employees who elect to
jon, and are exercisable in three or five years from date of grant, depending on the year of grant Currently only
three year grants are being offered The options under this scheme are treated as cash-settled The exercise price of
the options granted 15 equal to the market price of the shares less 20% on the date of grant

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Number of Range of Weighted Weighted Number of Range of  Weighted Weighted
options exercise price average average options eXErcise prece average average
outstanding £ exercise remaining (thousands) £ eXercise remaining
(thousands) price contractual price  contractual
£ hfe (years) £ life (years)
4,687 19 95 to 29 76 28.08 14 4342 1995102905 2753 14

The fair value of the options outstanding under the Sharesave scheme at 31 December 2012 1s £37 Om (2011
£23 2m)

Colleague Share Option Plan (CSOP) scheme

The scheme has been n existence for employees since 1995 and gained HMRC approval in 1999  Options were
granted every year up to and including 2006 to employees who are not eligible for share options under the Wal-Mart
Stock Incentive Plan, and are exercisable 1n three or six years from date of grant, depending on the year of grant
The opttons under this scheme are treated as cash-settled The final CSOP scheme exercised in 2012 leaving no
outstanding options

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Number of Exercise price Weighted Weighted Number of Range of Weighted Weighted
options £ average average options EXErcise price average average
outstanding exercise remaimng (thousands) £ eXercise remaining
(thousands) price contractual price  contractual
£ Iife (years) £ Iife {years)
0 000 0.00 0 1,082 28 64 2864 06

The fair value of the options outstanding under the CSOP scheme at 31 December 2012 15 £ml (2011 £9 Om)

Wal-Mart Stock Incentive Plan (WSIP) scheme

The scheme has been in existence since 1999 Options are granted to employees annually and are exercisable m five
or seven years from date of grant, depending on the grant agreement The options under this scheme are treated as
cash-settled

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Number of Range of Weighted Weighted Number of Rangeof Weighted Weighted
options exercise price average average options exercise price average average
outstanding £ exercise remaining (thousands) £ exercise remaining
(thousands) price contractual price  contractual
£ Life (years) £ hife (years)
978 27.26 to 36 65 3039 0.2 1,889 2838103771 3174 02

The fair value of the options outstanding under the WSIP scheme at 31 December 2012 is £12 4m (2011
£13 8m)
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19 Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
Restricted Stock Rights (RSR) scheme

The scheme was introduced mm 2008 as an alienative to the WSIP scheme Under the RSR scheme, employees are
awarded the night to receive a predetermuned number of shares in the ultimate parent company three years from the
award date All RSRs are classed as unapproved from an Income Tax and National Insurance perspective RSR
awards are treated as cash-settled

The number of share awards under the RSR scheme 15 as follows

Number of Number of

options options

{thousands) (thousands)

2012 2011

Qutstanding at the begmning of the year 948 792
Exercised during the year (215) (236)
Granted dunng the year 324 469
Lapsed during the year o1 7
Outstanding at the end of the year 966 948
Exercisable at the end of the yvear 18 1

The fair value of the options outstanding under the RSR scheme at 31 December 2012 15 £26 1m (2011 £14 4m)
The Group offers a PSP scheme, for which conditions exist in relation to exercise as described below
Performance Share Plan (PSP) scheme

The scheme came nto existence on 20 July 2006 Under the scheme, selected executives were granted the right to
recerve shares in Wal-Mart Stores, Inc provided certain pre-determuned performance goals are met In 2012 and
2011, these pre-determined goals were n respect of sales growth and return on investment All share awards under
the PSP scheme have been 1ssued for nil consideration and have a contractual life of between 1 and 3 years The
share awards under this scheme are treated as cash-settled

The number of share awards under the PSP scheme 1s as follows

Number ot Number ot

options options

(thousands) (thousands)

2012 2011

Quistanding at the beginning of the year 33 534
Exercised during the year (52) (123)
Conditionally granted during the year 404 108
Lapsed during the year (126) (188)
Outstanding at the end of the year 517 331
Exercisable at the end of the year 1 -

The fair value of the options outstanding under the PSP scheme at 31 December 2012 15 £13 2m (2011
£10 7m)
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19 Employee benefits (conttnued)
Share-based payments {continued)

The fair value of share options 1s measured using a Black-Scholes model taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the instruments were granted

The following table gives the weighted average assumptions apphed to the options outstanding 1 the respective
periods shown

2012 2011
Expected dividend yield (%) 283 293
Expected volatility (%) 18 57 1525
Rask-free interest rate (%) 016 028
Weighted average fair value of options granted (£) 1392 9 66
Weighted average exercise price (£) 2848 28 48
Expected life of option (years) Jors Jors

Volatility 1s a measure of the amount by which a price 1s expected to fluctuate during the year The Group has used
historical volaniities that correlate wath the expected term of the options

Share options are exercisable it US dollars and the nsk free interest rate is based on the applicable US treasury rate
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20 Provisions

The provisions balance includes provisions for onerous leases and lease guarantees against non trading properties,
the majonty of which are expected to crystallise in the next 7 years Also included are provisions for asset retirement
obhigations across the leasehold property portfolio These provisions are expected to crystallise at the end of the
lease term of each property

2012
£m
Balance at | January 223
Provided dumning the year 11
Utilised during the year (6 6)
Unused amounts reversed during the year (12
Discount changes and unwinding 27
Balance at 31 December 283
21 Deferred tax assets and habilitres
Recogrised deferred tax assets and habiluties
Deferred tax assets and habilities are attnbutable to the following
Assets Liabilities Net
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
im £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment - - 2174 2513 2174 2513
Employee benefits {100.9) (117 8) - - (100 9) {117 8)
Provisions a1y (68) - - (11 9) (68)
Other i1lems - - 24 22 24)
Tax (assets)habilitres (112 8) (124 6) 2150 2535 1022 128 9
Netting of tax {assets)/hiabilities 1128 124 6 (112.8) (124 6) -

Net tax habilities - - 102.2 1289 1022 1289

Certain properties have been revalued to their fair value prior to 1 January 2004 No provision has been made for
deferred tax on the temporary differences ansing on revalued land and buldings Histoncally upward revaluations
have been made n respect of land and not 1n respect of bulldings The tax base of land and buildings was adjusted
to include within 1t any rolled-over gains which might subsequently become chargeable on a future sale of relevant
properties It has been calculated that sufficient indexation exists to produce a temporary difference of £ml on the
whole porifolio of assets such that no deferred tax recogmition 15 required

The Group has brought forward capital losses of £354 5m (2011 £350 Om) available to reduce future capital gans
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the accumulated capital losses due to uncertainty of when they may be
utilised

53




ASDA Group Limuted
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21 Deferred tax assets and Lhabilities {contnued)

Movement in deferred tax during the year

1 January 2012 Recognised in Recogised in Recognised on Recogmsed in 31 December

mncome other busimess equity 2012

comprehensive combination

income

£m £m £m £m £m fm
Propetty, plant and equpment 2513 [EXD)] (08) - - 2174
Employee benefits {117 8) 78 93 - 02) (100 9)
Provisions 6 8) 31} - - - (119)
Other items 22 01 47 - - (24)
1289 (303) 38 - 02) 1022

Movement in deferred tax during the prnior year

1 January 2011 Recogmsed m Recognised i Recognised on Recognised 1n 31 December

mcome other business equity 2011

comprehensive combination

mcome

£m fm £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 2200 (175) - 488 - 2513
Employee benefits (109 5) 357 (44 0) - - (117 8)
Provisions (79 11 - - - {6 8)
Other items 15 14 21 - - 22
104 1 179 (419 488 - 1289

22 Share capital and premium

At 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010

Number of shares Share capital Share premium Total
thousands £m £m £m

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 23p each 3,135,705 7839 568 4 1,3523

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recetve dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company

The share premmm account 1s used to record amounts received in excess of the nominal value of shares on 1ssue of
new shares
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23 Reserves

Reconcihiation of movement in reserves 15 as follows

Cash flow Retamed

Reserves Other reserves hedge Earnings Total

£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2011 4371 (1 6) 34122 38477
Profit for the year - - 5686 568 6
Cash flow hedges - gains ansing in the year - 88 - 88
Tax on cash flow hedges recogmsed directly in equity - 21) - 2
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension scheme - - 44 44
Effect of mummum funding requirement - - (190 0) (190 0)
Tax on actuanial gains recogmsed directly 1n equity - - 440 440
Balance at 31 December 2011 437.1 51 38392 4,281.4
Balance at 1 January 2012 437 1 51 3,8392 4,281 4
Profit for the year - - 598 4 598 4
Cash flow hedges - losses ansing 1n the year - (217 - 21 7)
Tax on cash flow hedges recognised directly in equity - 59 - 59
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme - - (701) (70 1)
Effect of minimum funding requirement - - 136 136
Tax on actuarial losses recognised directly i equity - - 79 79
Tax on 1items credited to equity - - 02 02
Balance at 31 December 2012 437.1 (10.7) 438912 4,815 6

The other reserves relates to a revaluation reserve previously disclosed separately from retamned earnings for
information purposes

The cash flow hedge reserve represents the gains and losses ansing on revaluation of derivatives, being forward
currency contracts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

24 Obligations under leases

Operating lease agreements where Group 1s lessee

Future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable agreements 1s payable as follows

Operating lease agreements where Group 15 lessee

ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Land and buldings Other
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
No later than one year 977 862 266 299
Later than one year and no later than five years 2901 2689 431 49 8
Later than five years 59212 5327 48 34
9800 887 8 745 831

The Group leases various offices, stores, warehouses, velicles and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements The leases have various terms and renewal nights They have no purchase options or escalation

clauses

Operating lease agreements where Group 1s lessor

Future mimumum lease income under non-cancellable agreements 1s receivable as follows

No later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years

2012

£m
139

322
218

679

2011
£m

151

358
278

787

The Group sub-lets buildings of various natures under non-cancellable agreements The leases have vanious terms

and renewal rights
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24 Oblgations under leases (connnued)

The Group also leases bulldings under finance leases These leases have terms of renewal but no purchase options
and escalation clauses Renewals are at the option of the lessee  Future mimmum lease payments under finance
leases are as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Future mmimum payments due
No later than one year 57 57
Later than one year and no later than five years 228 228
Later than five years 479 536
764 821
Lease finance charges allocated to future pertods (398) {44 2)
Present value of minimum lease payments 366 379
The present value of mimmum lease payments is analysed as follows,
No later than one year 14 13
Later than one year and no later than five years 80 70
Later than five years 272 296
366 379

25 Commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had entered nto contracts to purchase property, plant and equipment for
£44 0m (2011 £11 4m)

The Group 1s commutted to purchase electricity under contracts with a number of providers  As at 31 December
2012, the commatment for the purchase of electricity under these contracts totalled £47 Sm (2011 £55 4m)
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26 Related parties

Identuty of related parnes

The following transactions were carmed out with group companies

Technical assistance, services and royalties paid to Wal-Mart Steres, Inc
License fees paid to fellow subsidiary of ultimate parent company

Interest pavable on loans from Broadstreet Great Wilson Europe Limited
Interest payable on loans from Cornth Investments Limited
Interest payable on loans from Wal-Mart LN (UK) Limited

Interest receivable on loans to Wal-Mart Stores (UK) Limited

Loans from Broadstreet Great Wilson Europe Limited
Loans from Corinth Investments Limited

Loans from Wal-Mart LN (UK) Limited

Loans from WMGS Co Limited

Loans from Wal-Mart Stores, Inc

Loans from Global George Limited

Loans to Global George Linuted
Loans to Wal-Mart Stores (UK) Limuted
Loans to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc

Interest on intercompany loans within the Group 1s charged on an arm’s length basis at a rate of 6% (2011 6%)

ASDA Group Limited

2012
fm

1853
118

228
578
80 6

910

366 4
972 8
1,516 2
36
34
02

1,797 0

Durectors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

2011
£m

144 5
119

225
548
788

7717

3555
9415
1,3513
27

35
1,2724
1161

£99m was paid to Broadsireet of Munsbach S arl, a fellow subsidiary of the Group’s ultimate parent company,
during the year for interest due on Eurobonds (note 8) At 31 December 2012, the Group’s liabihity n respect of
Eurobonds held by fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate parent company was £149 2m During the year, license fees
of £11 8m have been charged by Global George Lirited, a fellow subsidiary of the Group’s ultimate parent

company, which are included 1n intercompany payables at the year end

Amounts owed by fellow group entities totalled £1,797 Gm at 31 December 2012, as disclosed in note 15

Amounts owed to fellow group entities totalled £2,862 6m at 31 December 2012, as disclosed in note 17

Other related party transactions

Key management are the statutory directors and transactions with them are disclosed 1n note 6
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27 Ultimate parent company and parent company of larger group

The Group’s immediate parent company 1s Connth [nvestments Limited, a company mncorporated 1n England and
Wales

The next smallest group at which consolidated financial statements are prepared 15 Wal-Mart Stores (UK) Limited
Copies of these financial statements are available for inspection at 1ts registered office ASDA House, Southbank,
Great Wilson Street, Leeds, LS11 SAD

In the directors’ opumon, the ulumate parent company and controlling party 1s Wal-Mart Stores, Inc which 13
incorporated 1n the USA  Copies of its consolidated financial statements, which include this Group, can be obtained
from the Company Secretary, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc , Corporate Offices, 702 SW §th Street, Bentonville, AR72716,
Usa
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ASDA Group Limited — Parent Company

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for prepaning the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accountmg Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphcable law) Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to
s select smitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

»  state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explamed 1n the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other 1rregulanties
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of ASDA Group Limited

We have audited the parent company financial statements of ASDA Group Limited for the year ended 31 December
2012 which compnise the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation 1s apphcable law and Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibiiities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully i the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 60, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Qur responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards requure us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This mcludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors’ report to 1dent:fy matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements [f we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the imphcations for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements
¢  Give atrue and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012,
»  Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and
s  Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinian on other matters prescribed by the Comparues Act 2006
In our opinion the information given 1n the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent wath the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to

you 1f, 1n our opinion

e  Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received

from branches not visited by us, or
The parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
Certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
We have not received all the information and explanations we requure for our andit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of ASDA Group Limuted for the year ended 31
December 2012

Ensed wa (st P

Chnstabel Cowling (Sentor Statkdory Auditor)
for and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Leeds

1- June 2013
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012

Note 2012 2011
£m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 5 3,0215 2,806 9
Current assets
Debtors 6 2,i006 2,1958
Cash 7 335 3544
2,134 1 2,550 2
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 8 (2,943 3) (2,989 0)
Net current habilities (8092) (438 8B)
Total assets less current habilities 22123 2,368 1
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Bomowings Q (1492) (149 2)
Net assets 2,063 10 22189
Capital and reserves
Share capital 10 7839 7839
Share premum i1 568 4 568 4
Revaluation reserve i1 156 2 156 2
Profit and loss reserve 11 5546 710 4
Total shareholders' funds 2,063 1 22189

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 25 June 2013 and were signed on its behalf
by

R Mayfield
Drrecror
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Notes to the parent company statements
{formung part of she financial statements)

1 Accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements

Accounting basis

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with apphicable United
Kingdom accounting standards

No profit and loss account is presented by the Company, as permitted by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006
The Company has taken the exemption under FRS 1 ‘Cash Flow Statements ' not to present a cash flow statement

Under the provisions of FRS 8 ‘Related Parties’ the Company 1s not required to disclose details of mtragroup
transactions between group entities as the parent’s financial statements are presented with consohidated accounts

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption n paragraph 2D of FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments
Disclosures’ and has not disclosed mformation required by that standard, as the Group’s consohdated financial
statements, m which the Company 1s included, provide equivalent disclosures for the Group under IFRS 7
‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’

Basis of preparation

The company financial statements are prepared on a gomg concern basis as the ultimate holding company has
agreed that 1t will continue to provide financial support to the company to enable 1t to meet its habilities as they fall
due

Investments
Investments 1n subsidianes are stated at cost less provision for impairment

Short term 1investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value All income from these investments 1s
meluded 1n profit and loss as interest recervable and similar mcome

Foreign currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction or at the contracted
rate 1f the transaction 1s covered by a forward exchange contract Monetary assets and habihties denominated 1n
foreign currencies are Tetranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date or, 1f appropriate, at the
forward contract rate  All differences are taken to profit and loss

2 Auditors’ remuneration

The Company’s audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2012 was £2,800 (2011 £2,800) The Company’s audit
costs are paid by another group company

3 Employee numbers and costs

The Company 15 an intermediate holding company and has no employees other than directors

Directors’ remuneration 1s paid by another group company Directors’ time 15 spent predominantly n relation to
ASDA Stores Lumited, with limited time spent 1n relation to ASDA Group Limited as a company It 1s therefore not
deemed practical o allocate a portion of these costs to ASDA Group Limited as a company
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Notes to the parent company statements (confinued)

4 Dividends

Declared and paid during the vear
No dwvidend declared in 2012 (2011 mil)

5 Fixed asset investments

Cost at 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals

Cost at 31 December 2012
Impairment at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012
Net book value at 31 December 2012

Net book value at 31 December 2011

ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
31 December 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

£m £fm

Investment in
subsidianes
Em

2,8202
2147
o1
3,034 8
(13 3)

3,0215

2,8069

Following a review of the carrying value of investments held by the Company, no impairment charge (2011 £nil)

has been recogmised

Subsidiary undertakings

As at 31 December 2012, the following companies, bemng those whose results principally affect the financial
position of the Group, were subsidiary undertakings whose ordinary share capital was wholly owned, and which

were registered 1n England and Wales and operating in the UK

Principal actnaties

ASDA Stores Limited Retailing
McLagan Investments Limited Property Investment
The Burwood House Group Limited Property Investment

Holding company

ASDA Group Limted
ASDA Group Limited
McLagan Investments Limited
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31 December 2012

6 Debtors
2012 2011
fm £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,1006 2,1958
Amounts owed by group undertakings attract interest at an effective rate of 6% (2011 6%)
7 Cash
2012 2011
fm £m
Cash 333 354 4
Cash held by the company 1s 1n short term instruments with approved counterparties
8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,9382 2,984 0
Accruals 51 50
2,9433 2,9890

Amounts owed to group undertakings attract interest at an effective rate of 6% (2011 6%)
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Notes to the parent company statements (continued)

9 Borrowings

Amounts repayable between one and five years
Bonds due 2015

ASDA Group Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements

2012
fm

1492

31 December 2042

2011
£m

1492

On 17 July 1998, the Company 1ssued £150 Om of unsecured 6 5/8% bonds at 99441% of nominal value
redeemable at par on 17 July 2015 unless previously redeemed at the Company’s request, at the higher of the
principal amount or a price calculated to provide a yield equal to that earned on 8% Treasury Stock 2015

On 17 September 2007, all of the outstanding Eurobonds 1ssued by the Company were officially migrated from the
Main Market to the Professional Securiies Market of the London Stock Exchange

As at 31 December 2012, all borrowings were 1n Sterling at fixed rates of interest

The weighted average nterest rate of fixed rate debt1s 6 7% (2011 6 7%)

10 Share capital

Number £m
Authorised art 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
Ordinary shares of 25p each 5,000,000,000 1,250 0
Allotted, called up and fully paid at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
Ordinary shares of 25p each 3,135,704,690 7839
11 Share premium and other reserves
Share premium Revaluation Profit and loss
account reserve reserve Total
fm £m £m £fm
At | January 2012 568 4 1562 Ti04 1,435 0
Loss for the year - - (155 8) (155 8)
At 31 December 2012 568 4 1562 5546 1,279 2

In accordance wath the exemptions given by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, the Company has not

presented 1ts own profit and loss account

The loss for the financial year in the financial statements of the Company was £155 8m (2011 profit of £117 4m)
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Notes to the parent company statements (continued)

12 Commitments

The Company has no financial commitments (2011 none)

13 Ultimate parent company and parent company of larger group

The Company’s immediate parent company 15 Connth Investments Limuted, a company mcorporated in England and
Wales

The next smallest group at which consolhdated financial statements are prepared 15 Wal-Mart Stores (UK) Limted
Copies of these financial statements are available for mspection at 1its registered office ASDA House, Southbank,
Great Whison Street, Leeds, LS11 5AD

In the directors’ opimion, the ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s Wal-Mart Stores, Inc which 1s
incorporated 1n the USA  Copies of its consolidated financial statements, which include this Company, can be
obtained from the Company Secretary, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc , Corporate Offices, 702 SW 8th Street, Bentonville,
AR72716, USA
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